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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA:  This hearing is

          3  commenced.  Good morning.  My name is Diana Reyna,

          4  and I am Chair of the Committee on Rules,

          5  Privileges, and Elections.   Before we begin, I

          6  would like to take the opportunity to introduce

          7  Members of this Committee, as well as others from

          8  the body of the Council who are here today.  We have

          9  in front of us, Council Member Jimmy Oddo, Minority

         10  Leader; Council Member Leroy Comrie; Council Member

         11  Dilan; Council Member Simcha Felder; Council Member

         12  Oliver Koppell; Council Member Linda Katz; Council

         13  Member Mike McMahon; Council Member Joel Rivera;

         14  Council Member Louis Fidler.

         15                 Today we have before us eight

         16  candidates for our review.  They are Simon Gourdine,

         17  and apologize if I mispronounce anyone's name; Susan

         18  Grossman; Dr. Marlon Brewer; Paula Scher; James

         19  Polshek; Guy Gordenson (sic); Kevin Frawley; and

         20  Monica Blum.

         21                 Simon Gourdine, a resident of the

         22  Bronx, Mayoral appointment to the Civil Service

         23  Commission for the remainder of a six-year term,

         24  expiring on March 21, 2011, replacing Stanley

         25  Schleim (phonetic), who served as a holdover since
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          2  March, 2005.

          3                 Ms. Susan Grossman, a resident of

          4  Manhattan, Mayoral reappointment to the Tax

          5  Commission for the remainder of a six- year term

          6  that will expire on January 6, 2012, currently

          7  serving as a holdover since January 2006,

          8                 Doctor Marlon Brewer, a resident of

          9  Queens, Mayoral appointment to the Board of Health,

         10  filling a vacancy for the remainder of a six- year

         11  term that expires on May 31, 2012.

         12                 Paula Scher, a resident of Manhattan,

         13  and a graphic designer, Mayoral appointment to the

         14  Art Commission as a lay member for the remainder of

         15  a three- year term that expires on December 31,

         16  2008, replacing Hugh Freund, who served as a

         17  holdover since December, 2005.

         18                 James Polshek, a resident of

         19  Manhattan, Mayoral candidate to the Art Commission

         20  as an architect for the remainder of a three- year

         21  term that will expire on December 31, 2007,

         22  replacing LeeAnn Shelton, who has been serving as a

         23  holdover since December 2004.

         24                 Guy Gordenson (sic), a resident of

         25  Manhattan, and professional engineer, Mayoral
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          2  appointment to the Art Commission as a lay member

          3  for the remainder of a three- year term that expires

          4  on December 31, 2006, replacing Estrelitta Brodsky,

          5  who has been serving in a holdover capacity since

          6  December of 2003.

          7                 Kevin Frawley, a resident of

          8  Manhattan, a Mayoral appointment to the Conflicts of

          9  Interest Board, for the remainder of a six- year

         10  term that will expire on March 31, 2012, replacing

         11  Jane Parver (phonetic), who has been serving in a

         12  holdover capacity since April, 2006.

         13                 Monica Blum, a resident of Manhattan,

         14  Mayoral reappointment to the Conflicts of Interest

         15  Board, for the remainder of a six- year term that

         16  expires on March 31, 2012, currently serving as a

         17  holdover since April, 2006.

         18                 Before we hear from the candidates, I

         19  would like to take the opportunity to thank the

         20  investigators in the Council's Appointment

         21  Investigations Unit, for the extraordinary job that

         22  they have performed, preparing these reports on

         23  these candidates, on a very short notice, so that

         24  the Committee could consider these candidates today.

         25    Chuck Davis, and Crystal, and Barbara Butler, the
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          2  Counsel to this Committee, are those people that we

          3  are very appreciative of.

          4                 I'd like to apologize for the delay

          5  of this Committee, and to the candidates.  We try,

          6  when we have a Rules Committee, to begin on time,

          7  and unfortunately, there is so much happening on the

          8  stated days, it's a challenge.  But I would like to

          9  just begin with a different order for the sake of

         10  certain candidates who have expressed their

         11  schedules have now been delayed even further, and

         12  so, we're trying to speed this up as quickly as

         13  possible.

         14                 The first candidates to go before us

         15  are candidates to the Arts Commission.  The

         16  Commission reviews and approves all works of art to

         17  be maintained on City properties, or in City

         18  buildings; advises agencies having jurisdiction over

         19  them as to methods and procedures for the proper

         20  maintenance; and reviews and approves the designs of

         21  City agencies erecting public structures on City

         22  property, except for landmarks or projects located

         23  in an historic district.  The Commission itself does

         24  not contract for any art or work, nor does it select

         25  contractors, negotiate fees, or otherwise involve
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          2  itself in the selection or approval of contractors.

          3  The Commission brings its expertise to the process

          4  by reviewing submitted plans or work in accordance

          5  with standards enumerated in the Charter.  The

          6  Commission is composed of the Mayor or his

          7  representative, the President of the Metropolitan

          8  Museum of Art, the President of the New York Public

          9  Library, the President of the Brooklyn Museum, one

         10  painter, one sculptor, one architect, one landscape

         11  architect, all of whom shall be residents of the

         12  City, and three other residents of the City, who

         13  cannot be painters, sculptors, architects, landscape

         14  architects, or archive members, or of any other

         15  profession in the fine arts.

         16                 The Mayor and the museum and the

         17  library presidents serve in the ex officio capacity.

         18    The appointive members, whose service is not ex

         19  officio, are chosen from a list submitted by the

         20  Fine Arts Federation, of not less than three times

         21  the number to be appointed.  If the Federation fails

         22  to present a list of nominees within three months

         23  from the time when a vacancy occurs, the Mayor may

         24  appoint an individual without such input.  In case

         25  the Mayor fails to appoint within on year from the
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          2  time when a vacancy occurs, the Commission is

          3  authorized to fill such vacancy for any balance of

          4  the unexpired term without the Council's advice and

          5  consent review.  All members serve on the Commission

          6  without compensation.  Members serve for three- year

          7  terms, or until a successor has been appointed and

          8  qualified.

          9                 Welcome Ms. Scher, Mr. Polshek, and

         10  Mr. Nordenson. Will you please raise your right hand

         11  and be sworn in.  If you can just please  --  I'd

         12  like to ask Counsel.

         13                 MS. BUTLER: Do you swear to tell the

         14  truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: If you can press

         16  the buttons.  And now put the mike right before you.

         17  And if you can just repeat that again, so that it

         18  can be stated into the record.

         19                 MS. BUTLER: Do you swear to tell the

         20  truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         21                 MS. SHER: I do.

         22                 (Unidentified): I do.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you very

         24  much.  I'd like to ask Ms. Sher and the rest of the

         25  candidates if they have their testimonies.  If
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          2  they'd like to say a few words.  We want to limit

          3  your statements to at least one minute, only because

          4  we're playing with a very hectic schedule today,

          5  yours as well as ours.

          6                 MS. SCHER: My name is Paula Scher.

          7  I'm a partner in the New York International Design

          8  Consultancy, Pentagram Design. I'm a practicing

          9  communication and environmental designer with 35

         10  years experience, and I'm principally known for

         11  bringing spirit and accessibility to public spaces.

         12  Some of the projects I've designed identities or

         13  signage for in New York City are the Public Theater,

         14  Rose Center for Earth and Space, New 42nd Street

         15  Studios, Symphony Space, Jazz at Lincoln Center the

         16  Asia Society, the High Line, Madison Square Park,

         17  and most recently, the Metropolitan Opera.

         18                 I think it would be helpful to the

         19  Arts Commission to have a person on board who

         20  understands how people move through public spaces.

         21  I'm talking here not just about way- finding, but

         22  helping New Yorkers appreciate the individuality and

         23  spirit of public spaces, thereby bringing a new

         24  level of joy and humanity to everyday experiences.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you Ms.
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          2  Scher.  Mr. Polshek.

          3                 MR. POLSHEK: My name is James Stewart

          4  Polshek.  I am a Fellow of the American Institute of

          5  Architects.  I have been a resident of New York City

          6  for 51 years.  I have been licensed to practice

          7  architecture for 46 of those years.  The firm that I

          8  founded in 1962 has concentrated on building for

          9  cultural, educational, scientific, and governmental

         10  institutions.  This has come about primarily out of

         11  my personal belief that an architect's primary

         12  responsibility should be the improvement of public

         13  architecture.  Consequently, our clients in New York

         14  City have included the following: Carnegie Hall, the

         15  Brooklyn Museum of Art, the Joseph Papp Public

         16  Theater, the New York Botanical Garden, the Museum

         17  of the City of New York, the Frank Sinatra School

         18  for the Arts, Rose Center for Earth and Space, the

         19  Queens Borough Public Library, the New York Hall of

         20  Science, Newtown Creek, Bronx Emergency Assistance

         21  Unit, and finally, the Fire Department of New York

         22  Rescue Three.

         23                 From 1973 through 1987, I was Dean of

         24  the graduate School of Architecture, Planning and

         25  Historic Preservation, where I founded the Temple
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          2  Hoyne Buell Center for the study of American

          3  Architecture.

          4                 I hope this brief statement

          5  demonstrates my commitment to advancing the City's

          6  welfare, and to reinforcing the mission of the New

          7  York City Art Commission.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you very

          9  much Mr. Polshek. Mr. Nordenson.

         10                 MR. NORDENSON: My name is Guy

         11  Nordenson.  I've lived most of my life in New York

         12  City, and currently reside with my wife Catherine

         13  and son Sebastian on East 66th Street, in Manhattan.

         14    I'm a professor of structural engineering at the

         15  Princeton University School of Architecture, and I

         16  have a small consulting structural engineering

         17  practice in New York City.  Our office is primarily

         18  engaged as consultants to architects and building

         19  owners.  A good part of our work is on the design of

         20  museums.  We were part of the design team for the

         21  new Museum of Modern Art, and the new Museum of

         22  Contemporary Art in New York, as well as recently-

         23  opened Toledo Museum of Art Center of Glass in Ohio,

         24  and the Nelson Atkins Museum of Art in Kansas City.

         25                 I began my career working in the

                                                            13

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  joint studio of Isamu Noguchi and Buckminster Fuller

          3  in Long Island City in 1976, on public arts projects

          4  and museum exhibits.  Noguchi encouraged my to

          5  pursue a career in engineering, and ever since, I've

          6  worked with artists on public arts projects.  I

          7  believe that high- quality public art plays a

          8  necessary role in strengthening the sense of pride

          9  and participation of citizens in a great City.  I

         10  also know that judgements of quality and excellence

         11  of design and art are often contentious.  To me,

         12  that is part of the contribution of art to civilized

         13  discourse.  Forceful debate strengthens the public

         14  realm and democracy.

         15                 This week, we are reflecting on the

         16  history that we all bore witness to since the

         17  terrorist attacks of September 11th. Since then,

         18  architecture, engineering, and art have all played

         19  complex roles in the difficult development of ideas

         20  and designs for the rebuilding of the World Trade

         21  Center site.  I went to work at Ground Zero five

         22  years ago today, on September 13th, first assisting

         23  on the recovery work with my friends and colleagues

         24  at the Structural Engineering Association of New

         25  York, and later, working on several projects for the
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          2  site.  I have seen how important and difficult a

          3  challenge it is for those working in art and design

          4  to clarify in advance true excellence, rigor,

          5  intelligence, and beauty in the center of democratic

          6  dissention and debate.

          7                 The Art Commission was founded in

          8  1898, at a time when powerful citizens supported the

          9  idea that a great metropolis is necessarily the

         10  place for great works of art and architecture. I

         11  believe we're seeing a time of similar ambition and

         12  opportunity in the arts and design in New York City,

         13  owed in good part to the support of Mayor

         14  Bloomberg's Administration, but also that of a great

         15  many dedicated citizens of New York.

         16                 As an engineer on the Art Commission,

         17  I anticipate I will find opportunities also to

         18  support the same ambition for excellence and beauty

         19  in works of infrastructure as in art and

         20  architecture.  After all, in 1898, one of the great

         21  inspirations for poets and painters was the 15- year

         22  old Brooklyn Bridge.  Why shouldn't our civil

         23  engineering works inspire citizens and artists today

         24  as well?

         25                 I'm honored and humbled by the
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          2  Mayor's invitation to serve on the Art Commission.

          3  I will every effort to serve with an open mind and

          4  an open heart, looking for and supporting excellence

          5  in art and design in New York City in way I can.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Gordenson (sic). Are there any questions from our

          9  Council colleagues?   And I'd like to welcome

         10  Council Member David Weprin.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you

         12  Chair.

         13                 I'd like to ask these questions at

         14  one time, so whatever I'm saying, to three of you,

         15  and you can decide whoever wants to answer first.

         16  Can you please tell me where you live now, and where

         17  you grew up?  We'll start from the right.  Go ahead.

         18                 MS. SHER.  I'm on the right?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: What?  Which

         20  ever one.  I wanted to see what you would do.

         21                 MS. SHER: Okay.  I'm a little

         22  dyslexic, so  -- . I was born in Washington DC, and

         23  I currently live at 38 West 26th Street in

         24  Manhattan, and I've lived in New York for 35 years.

         25                 MR. NORDENSON: I was born in Paris,
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          2  France, and moved here when I was four, and I have

          3  lived in New York off and on ever since.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Where in New

          5  York?

          6                 MR. NORDENSON: On various places in

          7  the village, but now I have lived on 66th Street on

          8  the East Side.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

         10                 MR. POLSHEK: I was born in Akron,

         11  Ohio, and I have lived in New York City, at 32

         12  Washington Square West currently.  I have lived in

         13  the City for 51 years.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.  So let

         15  me just say, I am by no means an expert in any of

         16  the things you discussed, but to me, I'm just

         17  sharing this, and this is no reflection on your

         18  expertise or the fact that you know, whether you

         19  should be, or should not be appointed, but I find it

         20  somewhat bizarre that three appointments are being

         21  made to the Art Commission, and not one of them is

         22  from the outside boroughs.  Not one of them.  Now

         23  you don't have to move today, because that's not

         24  going to make a difference, but this is something

         25  that has been discussed over and over again, and
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          2  despite the qualifications, which are very

          3  impressive, the fact is, that somebody that grows up

          4  in Staten Island or Brooklyn, or Queens, or the

          5  Bronx, has certain experiences, feelings, whatever

          6  you want to call it, that are different than someone

          7  that spends their time in Manhattan.  And whether

          8  it's good or bad, that's not the issue.  And to have

          9  a Commission, the Commission should be

         10  representative, I believe, of the entire City.  So

         11  to me, this is --  don't answer this question,

         12  because this is called a tirade, and I'm upset about

         13  it.  But it's not your fault.  I think  --  I find

         14  it  --  you know, I find it very offensive that we

         15  have to go through these things over and over again.

         16    Appointments should be made you know, as I said,

         17  that are representative of the City.

         18                 Now I have but one last question for

         19  all three of you.  Some times, those of my

         20  colleagues that have not had any experience with the

         21  Art Commission, we're not talking about just some

         22  sort of artistic things you know, in neighborhoods.

         23  We're talking about basic items.  So for example, if

         24  I or you have a project in your neighborhood that

         25  you've put money into with the Economic Development
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          2  Corporation, and you spend two years coming up with

          3  a plan, and they find that they should put a certain

          4  pole in that they believe will be beautiful for the

          5  neighborhood, then we bring this to the Art

          6  Commission, and the Art Commission, those that are

          7  there now, they sit and they say, "You know, we

          8  don't like this pole.  We like the other pole."  You

          9  know, I want to ask you, that  --  would you agree

         10  that to go out  --  I'm not talking about on every

         11  item that you have to hear, but especially on

         12  projects that are being funded through the City to

         13  beautify a neighborhood, that instead of sitting in

         14  the office  --  and I know your time is valuable  --

         15    to make a commitment to come out to the

         16  neighborhoods that you are going to decide upon,

         17  instead of sitting in the Commission at a meeting,

         18  when you know, two year worth of City money has gone

         19  into investing in it.  So the question, to be

         20  concise is, would you be willing to make a

         21  commitment at least on City projects, that are being

         22  funded, to go out and actually see the

         23  neighborhoods, instead of just sitting back maybe at

         24  a time, and saying "I like this pole, I don't like

         25  this pole", when if you go down Avenue J, the
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          2  pastrami on Avenue J is a lot different than the

          3  pastrami than on you know, Second Avenue in

          4  Manhattan.  We'll start from the right, like last

          5  time.

          6                 MS. SCHER: Sure, absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So that means

          8  that's a "yes", that you would be willing, right?

          9                 MS. SCHER: Absolutely.  I think a

         10  design should be site- specific.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.  But

         12  are you willing to go down, that's what I want to

         13  know.

         14                 MS. SCHER: Yes.  Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Excellent.

         16  Next.

         17                 MR. NORDENSON: Absolutely as well,

         18  but I also should say that I think that the process

         19  at the beginning, before those two years elapse,

         20  should include discussions, and I think it does

         21  include discussions, with the Art Commission at the

         22  start.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

         24  But are you willing to come to Brooklyn, right?

         25                 MR. NORDENSON: I do all the time.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

          3                 MR. POLSHEK: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          7  Member Felder.

          8                 So I'd like to move forward in the

          9  next category. The Civil Service Commission.  The

         10  Commission consists of five members, with not more

         11  than three being from the same political party.  Mr.

         12  Gourdine, registered in the Democratic Party, would

         13  succeed Stanley Schleim.  The Mayor, from a list

         14  provided by the Screening Committee, makes the

         15  appointment.  Members have a six year term, and are

         16  reimbursed on a per diem basis of $335.60 for the

         17  Chair, and $305.09 for the other members, for

         18  attendance at scheduled meetings.

         19                 The Commission's duties include

         20  hearing and determining appeals from any aggrieved

         21  person from a decision by the Commissioner of the

         22  Department of Citywide Services, who is responsible

         23  for Citywide personnel matters.  The Commission may

         24  affirm, modify, or reverse such a decision.

         25                 The Commission also has all the
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          2  powers and duties set forth in the State's Civil

          3  Service Law.  The Commission, either on its own, or

          4  at the request of the Mayor, Council, or DCAS

          5  Commission, may conduct reviews or studies of the

          6  Administration, of personnel in the City, including

          7  the classification of titles.

          8                 Welcome Mr. Gourdine.  Would you

          9  please raise your right hand and be sworn in?

         10                 MS. BUTLER: Do you swear to tell the

         11  truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         12                 MR. GOURDINE: I do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Mr. Gourdine, if

         14  you choose to read your statement, and I welcome you

         15  to, I just want to assure you that if you have a

         16  pressing engagement after this, you can certainly

         17  decline, but you're more than willing to state your

         18   -- read into the record your statement.

         19                 MR. GOURDINE: Thank you Madam Chair,

         20  but  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: If you can press

         22  your  --

         23                 MR. GOURDINE: I have it pressed, I

         24  guess I'll just have to get a little closer.  Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 I think since you've indicated that

          3  there is a very pressing need for time, and you do

          4  have my testimony in the record, I will wave the

          5  reading of the testimony, if that's acceptable to

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely.  And

          8  I'd like to take the opportunity to at least

          9  acknowledge my colleagues, if there's any questions

         10  or comments, I know that Council Member Weprin would

         11  like to say a few words.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Thank you

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 I know this perspective nominee for

         15  over 20 years. Actually, I first met him in a

         16  capacity that's actually not listed on his resume.

         17  I was looking at his resume very carefully.  And

         18  that was as a member of the New York State Banking

         19  Board, when I was Deputy Superintendent of Banking

         20  and Secretary to the Banking Board, from 1983 to

         21  1987.  And I first met Mr. Gourdine in that

         22  capacity, and I followed his career since then, and

         23  I can say, as a member of the Banking Board, he was

         24  one of the most outstanding members of that board,

         25  the most conscientious, and always was available and
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          2  was always prepared for meetings.  But I've also

          3  gotten to know him in a number of his other

          4  capacities, including the Board of Education, the

          5  Rockefeller Foundation, and most recently, with the

          6  Police Department, as a Deputy Commissioner in

          7  charge of trials and other capacities.  And I can

          8  attest to him being of the highest integrity, being

          9  one of the most outstanding, brightest, hard-

         10  working individuals that I've come to know, and I

         11  know he'll make an outstanding member of the Civil

         12  Service Commission, and I highly recommend his

         13  nomination.

         14                 MR. GOURDINE: Thank you Mr. Weprin.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'd like to call

         16  on Council Member Fidler.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you

         18  Madam Chairwoman.

         19                 I too have had a previous encounter

         20  with Mr. Gourdine.  And it goes back to the Summer

         21  of 1976, Mr. Gourdine, when I was first- year law

         22  student at NYU Law School.  And you were the Deputy

         23  Commissioner in the NBA, and back then, I was hoping

         24    -- and Councilman Dilan was two years old  --  and

         25  I was contemplating a career in sports law.  And
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          2  cold, I called you at that time, and you spent an

          3  hour on the phone with me, and it was gracious, it

          4  showed a real character.  You answered all the

          5  questions I possibly could have had, without knowing

          6  who I was, or that 30 years later, you would be

          7  here, and I'd be a Member of the Council, and be

          8  asked to comment on your qualifications for an

          9  office.  And it has something that I have obviously

         10  never forgotten, and I never will. I thought it

         11  showed a tremendous amount of class.  And I just

         12  want to recommend Mr. Gourdine to this Committee

         13  very, very highly.

         14                 MR. GOURDINE: Thank you sir.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you Mr.

         16  Gourdine.

         17                 I'd like to move to the next

         18  Commission, the Tax Commission.  The Tax Commission

         19  is responsible for reviewing and correcting all

         20  assessments of real property within the City.  The

         21  Commission has a President and six Commissioner, all

         22  of whom, with at least three- years experience in

         23  the field of real estate or real estate law.  The

         24  President receives an annual salary of $166,884.

         25  Commissioners receive an annual salary of $25,174.
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          2                 Welcome Ms. Grossman.  Will you

          3  please raise your hand, your right hand, and be

          4  sworn in?

          5                 MS. BUTLER: Do you swear to tell the

          6  truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          7                 MS. GROSSMAN: Yes, I do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Grossman, if

          9  you'd like to read your statement, or wish to

         10  decline, we certainly understand and accept.

         11                 MS. GROSSMAN: I certainly would like

         12  to decline.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you Ms.

         14  Grossman.  And if there are any questions or

         15  comments from my colleagues.  Council Member Felder.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: It's just a

         17  comment.  I had the privilege of working for Susan

         18  Grossman in the Department of Finance, and the fact

         19  that she endured  --  it's very important Chair, I

         20  would appreciate your listening to this, because

         21  it's critical on this appointment.  I just would say

         22  that the fact that she endured, despite the fact

         23  that my desk was only about 20 feet away from her

         24  office, it is a testament to her ability.  But we

         25  had very, very good times, and there were very, very
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          2  monumental tasks cleaning up thousands of cases that

          3  were found in the basement, among other things that

          4  had been neglected.  So although I'm not a Member of

          5  the Committee, but it's a pleasure to have the roles

          6  changed, and for me to be able to boss her around a

          7  little bit, and to say that she was extraordinary

          8  professional, and deserves the appointment.

          9                 MS. GROSSMAN: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Bless your heart.

         11                 Moving forward to the Board of

         12  Health.  The Board is part of the New York City

         13  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene. The Board's

         14  Chairperson is the Commissioner of the Department.

         15  The main function of the Board is to promulgate the

         16  New York City Health Code, which encompasses any

         17  matter within the jurisdiction of the Department.

         18  The Department has jurisdiction to regulate on all

         19  matters affecting health in the City, including, but

         20  not limited to, mental health, mental retardation,

         21  alcoholism and substance abuse- related needs of

         22  City residents.

         23                 The scope of the Department's

         24  jurisdiction includes such diverse disciplines such

         25  as communicable diseases, environmental health
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          2  services, radiological health, food safety,

          3  veterinary affairs, water quality, pest control, and

          4  vital statistics.  New emerging pathogens and

          5  biological warfare are the most recent additions to

          6  the Department's roster of concerns.

          7                 The Board also is charged with

          8  certain administrative responsibilities such as the

          9  issue and suspension, or revocation of permits.

         10  Food vendor permits, for example.  The Board may

         11  declare a state of great and imminent peril, and

         12  take appropriate steps subject to Mayoral approval,

         13  and can declare certain conditions as nuisances and

         14  order that such conditions be abated or otherwise

         15  corrected.

         16                 Besides the Chairperson, the Board

         17  consists of ten members, five of whom shall be

         18  Doctors of Medicine, who must have at least ten

         19  years experience in any or all of the following:  --

         20  Could we please have some quiet in the chamber.

         21  Thank you. Clinical medicine, neurology, psychiatry,

         22  public health administration, or college,

         23  university, public health teaching. The other five

         24  members need not be physicians, but shall hold at

         25  least a Master's Degree in either environmental,
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          2  biological, veterinary, physical or behavioral

          3  health or science, or rehabilitative science, or in

          4  a related field.  With at least ten years experience

          5  in their respective fields.

          6                 The Chairperson of the Mental Health

          7  Advisory Board is required to be one of the ten

          8  Board Members, provided that such individual meets

          9  the requirements for Board membership.  The nine

         10  Board members other than the Chairperson, and the

         11  member who shall be the Chairperson of the Mental

         12  Hygiene Advisory Board, serve without compensation,

         13  and are appointed by the Mayor for a term of six

         14  years.

         15                 Welcome Dr. Brewer.  Will you please

         16  raise your right hand and be sworn in?

         17                 MS. BUTLER: Will you swear to tell

         18  the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

         19  truth?

         20                 DR. BREWER: I do.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you Dr.

         22  Brewer.  I'd like to give you the opportunity to

         23  read your opening statement.  And if you choose to

         24  decline, by all means, we understand.  But you do

         25  have, and we welcome you to say a few words if you'd
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          2  like.

          3                 DR. BREWER: Well I think my opening

          4  statement is a part of the record, and I'll decline.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

          6                 Dr. Brewer, I'd like to give my

          7  colleagues an opportunity to ask or refer comments.

          8  Council Member Katz.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 I just  --  clearly, from Dr.

         12  Brewer's resume, he is clearly qualified to hold the

         13  position.  I would be remiss if I didn't mention,

         14  he's also a Forest Hills resident, a coach on the

         15  Little League, involved in all those issues.  And

         16  I'm very proud that someone from our community is

         17  here for the appointment.  But the only thing I

         18  would like to add, Madam Chair  --  and this has

         19  nothing to do with the appointment, it's really

         20  internal workings of the Council and the

         21  Administration  --  is that I didn't know that he

         22  was up for appointment from my district until today.

         23    And so, I guess if the Administration is here, I

         24  don't know how we work this out in the future.  I

         25  would like to know, in general, when someone is even
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          2  being investigated or up for appointment that comes

          3  from our district.  I just think it would be

          4  helpful.  And quite honestly, we may have some ideas

          5  on the appointment.

          6                 So I've no doubt about the

          7  credentials of the candidate, and I think it's

          8  terrific.  But if we can work out those internal

          9  issues, that would be terrific.

         10                 And I do look forward to voting for

         11  you today as the appointment, and seeing you at the

         12  Little League field.

         13                 DR. BREWER: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: When do you find

         15  the time?

         16                 I'd like to just comment, before we

         17  move on to the last board, the fact that we  --

         18  this is not a perfect process. And there's always

         19  room for improvement.  And we are working with the

         20  Mayor's Administration to improve certain selection,

         21  as far as reaching the goals of diversity on all of

         22  these boards and commissions.  I'd like, and

         23  welcome, the input of all of our colleagues, and we

         24  do need to be mindful of allowing the process to be

         25  one of transparency where our colleagues are able to
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          2  sit through such a hearing, knowing beforehand that

          3  a appointee is coming from their perspective

          4  district.  So the comment is duly noted.  And thank

          5  you, Council Member Katz, for raising it on the

          6  record.

          7                 Council Member Oddo.  I'd just want

          8  Council Member Katz and my colleagues to know that

          9  I'm going to refrain from asking the candidate what

         10  his thoughts are metal bats.  On metal bats.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Why?  It's a very

         12  sensitive issue.  And I appreciate that Council

         13  Member Oddo.  Dr. Brewer, just know, that as a side

         14  conversation, it would be interesting to have a

         15  conversation with Council Member Oddo on metal bats.

         16  He has one or two things for you to know.  Thank you

         17  Dr. Brewer.

         18                 Finally, we will go to the Conflicts

         19  of Interest Board.  The Conflicts of Interest Board

         20  is the entity that serves to provide clear guidance

         21  to public employees regarding prohibitive conduct

         22  through training, education, and the issuance of

         23  advisory opinions.  The Board also adopts rules to

         24  implement and interpret the provisions of the

         25  Conflicts of Interest Code.  It reviews and decides
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          2  on alleged violations of said Code, with the power

          3  to impose fines that can be as high as $10,000, or

          4  include suspension or dismissal from City service,

          5  where appropriate.

          6                 The Board also collects and reviews

          7  financial disclosure reports.  Board members are

          8  entitled to receive a per diem in the amount of $250

          9  for each calendar day that they perform work for the

         10  Board.  The Chair receives $275.

         11                 Welcome Mr. Frawley and Ms. Blum.

         12  Will you please raise your right hand and be sworn

         13  in?

         14                 MS. BUTLER: Do you swear to tell the

         15  truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         16                 MR. FRAWLEY: I do.

         17                 MS. BLUM: I do.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you so much.

         19    I'd like to welcome the opportunity for you to

         20  read your opening statement.  We understand if you'd

         21  like to decline.

         22                 MR. FRAWLEY: I'll waive the reading,

         23  as long as it's in the record, Madam Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         25                 MS. BLUM: The same here.  But I do
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          2  thank you for considering me for reappointment

          3  today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely.  Thank

          5  you Ms. Blum. Thank you Mr. Frawley.  My colleagues,

          6  are there any questions for these two appointees?

          7                 I would like to take this opportunity

          8  to thank the remaining candidates.  You are welcome

          9  to leave.  I just need to take a recess to figure

         10  out if we have quorum.  Our colleagues who are here,

         11  please do not leave, because we're going to take

         12  Members from the other room, other side of the room,

         13  who are sitting in Finance, to come in and vote on

         14  the appointees we've just heard. Thank you.

         15                 A recess was taken.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: We'd like to

         17  proceed with a vote. We've been joined by our

         18  Speaker, Christine Quinn.  I'd like to ask for roll

         19  call.

         20                 The most important person in the

         21  Council is not here.  That was off the record.

         22                 Ramon, can we please have Billy come

         23  upstairs? Okay.  Thank you.

         24                 In the meantime, I'd like to thank

         25  Ms. Shapiro Davis, from the Mayor's Office, for
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          2  having prepared all these candidates here today, and

          3  working with the Council.

          4                 Simcha, what are you doing taking her

          5  attention away?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Those Members

          7  of the Finance Committee, if you could go in.  The

          8  Finance Committee is taking place now.  We're going

          9  to need you for a vote after you vote in Rules.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: The man is here.

         11                 Whenever you're ready, roll call.

         12                 COMMITTEE CLERK: Speaker Quinn

         13                 SPEAKER QUINN: Yes.

         14                 COMMITTEE CLERK: Council Member Reyna

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Yes.

         16                 COMMITTEE CLERK: Rivera

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.

         18                 COMMITTEE CLERK: Comrie

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Permission to

         20  explain my vote.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm going to

         23  vote aye on all. I just want to echo the comments of

         24  Councilman Felder regarding the Arts Commission and

         25  in general, on the desire to have diversity on these
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          2  various boards and commissions.  And to ensure that

          3  we have the entire vision of the City represented

          4  across the board as much as possible.  I think it

          5  behooves us.  And I want to congratulate, actually

          6  take the time to congratulate my successor to the

          7  Committee for raising that issue during this

          8  process, and doing everything she can to ensure that

          9  the Mayor's Office is doing more to ensure that

         10  there is diversity.  On the Arts Commission, in

         11  particular, we need to do some more work to find out

         12  what this Fine Arts Federation is requiring of

         13  people that they are not getting the opportunities

         14  to be aware of this maybe, that there's a good

         15  opportunity to be a part of the cultural life and

         16  the artistic life of this City.  And hopefully, we

         17  can work with the Mayor's Office to get some better

         18  information out so that we can acquire a wider array

         19  of people that would be interested in.  But clearly,

         20  there was some attempt by the Mayor's Office to do

         21  an increase in diversity, and I look forward to the

         22  other people that are going to be appointed here on

         23  in by the Mayor's Office.

         24                 I vote aye on all.

         25                 COMMITTEE CLERK: Weprin.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on all.

          3                 COMMITTEE CLERK: Dilan.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

          5                 COMMITTEE CLERK: Fidler.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: May I be

          7  briefly excused to explain my vote?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Of course.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.  I

         10  want to echo the comments of Council Member Comrie

         11  in thanking the Chairwoman Reyna on the issues

         12  related to the Arts Commission, in particular, which

         13  are absurd, not just geographically, but

         14  particularly ethnically.  In the constraints of the

         15  rules that apparently exist under the Charter now,

         16  in that knowing that this will not happen again,

         17  thanks to the work that you are doing with the Fine

         18  Arts Commission, or whatever they're called.

         19                 I also want to thank the Chairwoman

         20  for her indulgence today, in adjusting the agenda.

         21  I realized at the last moment that it was a heavy

         22  request, and I appreciate it very, very much, and I

         23  just want to say it on the record.

         24                 And having said that, I vote aye on

         25  all, with particular enthusiasm for my old friend,
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          2  Mr. Gourdine.

          3                 COMMITTEE CLERK: Jackson

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Madam Chair,

          5  may I be excused to explain my vote?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely Council

          7  Member Jackson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

          9                 Before we formerly began the meeting,

         10  I had an opportunity to introduce myself to all of

         11  the candidates for appointments to the various

         12  boards or commissions.  And I expressed to the three

         13  members of the Art Commission, as a Member of the

         14  City Council, and as a Co- Chair of the Black,

         15  Latino, and Asian Caucus, my concern about the lack

         16  of diversity on the Art Commission.  And I'm not

         17  talking about geographical diversity.  My colleague,

         18  Simcha Felder mentioned that.  That's clearly an

         19  appropriate subject.  I am referring specifically to

         20  the lack of diversity of people of color.

         21  Considering the fact that New York City is one of

         22  the diverse cities in the world, this current Art

         23  Commission, with these appointees, would have no

         24  people of color whatsoever.  And I stand here, not

         25  only as a Member of the City Council, but more
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          2  specifically, as a Co- Chair of the Caucus, to

          3  express my disappointment at the fact that out of

          4  all of the people involved in arts, and all of the

          5  lay people that do not have to be in the definitions

          6  as you defined, and reading the protocol, that we

          7  could not find people of color to fill seats on the

          8  Arts Commission.

          9                 So I raise that as an issue.  I see

         10  we have the Mayor's Office of the Legislative

         11  Affairs here, representatives. So I'm sure that

         12  they're taking notes.  And we, as members of the

         13  Caucus, will be formerly communicating that to the

         14  Mayor's Office and to the Fine Arts Federation, and

         15  to the Commission, and to the Speaker's Office,

         16  formerly, in order to try to ensure that New York

         17  City's boards and commissions reflect the diversity

         18  of the people that live in New York City.

         19                 And with that said, I vote aye on

         20  all.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you Council

         22  Member Jackson.

         23                 COMMITTEE CLERK: Katz

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I vote aye,

         25  Madam Chair, with apologies on before.  Apparently,
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          2  I was called about the appointment, we just had a

          3  miscommunication regarding the residence of the

          4  applicant.  And so that was the miscommunication

          5  there.  So I do appreciate that, and in the future,

          6  we spoke about how to make that clearer in the

          7  conversation.  But I will say the Administration

          8  also, that while they are trying to choose from

          9  their candidates, there are times that the Council

         10  Members are very involved in their community, and

         11  know the candidates very well.  So if there was a

         12  way for us to find out before it actually just gets

         13  to us.  Because once it gets to us, it's always

         14  difficult to turn it around if we choose that.

         15                 So I just want to throw that out

         16  there and I vote aye.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         18                 COMMITTEE CLERK: McMahon.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Aye on all.

         20                 COMMITTEE CLERK: Garodnick.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Aye on all.

         22                 COMMITTEE CLERK: Oddo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         24                 COMMITTEE CLERK: With a vote of 12 in

         25  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no
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          2  abstentions, all items are adopted.  Council

          3  Members, please sign Committee reports.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'd like to thank

          5  at last, but not least, Reggie Guiteau.  He is the

          6  head of the Investigations Unit.  And we have

          7  finished the hearing on Rules, Privileges, and

          8  Elections.  This hearing is adjourned.

          9                 (The following written testimony was

         10  read into the record.)

         11

         12

         13                 Written testimony of:

         14                 Simon P. Gourdine

         15

         16                 New York City Council Committee on

         17  Rules, Privileges and Elections, Honorable Diane

         18  Reyna, Chair.

         19                 Good Morning:

         20                 My career has spanned over 40 years

         21  of public and private sector activities, virtually

         22  all of which have involved policy- making

         23  responsibilities. After returning from military

         24  service where I served as an Army captain in South

         25  Vietnam conducting investigations in the Inspector
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          2  General's Office. I was appointed as an Assistant

          3  United States Attorney in the Southern District of

          4  New York under Robert Morgenthau. I then joined the

          5  National Basketball Association ("NBA") as an

          6  Assistant to the Commissioner and in- house council.

          7  I was subsequently elected by the NBA owners to be

          8  the first deputy Commissioner and Chief Operating

          9  Officer, where I operated the league on a day- to-

         10  day basis.

         11                 I then moved again to the public

         12  sector when I was appointed as Commissioner of

         13  Consumer Affairs under Mayor Edward Koch. I served

         14  for two years and then became the Corporate

         15  Secretary of the Rockefeller Foundation. I was

         16  appointed thereafter as Director of Labor Relations

         17  for the Metropolitan Transportation Authority. I

         18  advised the Chairman, Robert Kiley, on all labor

         19  issues and participated in negotiations involving

         20  the Transit Authority and its Transport Workers

         21  Union, the Long Island Rail Road and Metro North.

         22  After four years, I joined the National Basketball

         23  Players Association (the Union) as General Council,

         24  and subsequently, its Executive Director.

         25  Thereafter, I joined the then Board of Education as
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          2  General Council to Chancellor Rudy Crew, where I

          3  supervised approximately 60 attorneys in the legal

          4  and labor relations areas.

          5                 I completed my full- time career

          6  serving as the Police Department's deputy

          7  Commissioner- Trials, where I supervised four

          8  Commissioners and presided over disciplinary trials

          9  that overwhelmingly involved uniformed members of

         10  the service. If convicted, the respondents faced

         11  penalties which ranged from reprimands to

         12  terminations of service and loss of pensions. All

         13  such cases were made as recommendations to the

         14  Police Commissioner, Raymond Kelly, who made the

         15  final decision that was appealable to the courts.

         16                 Parenthetically, I also served on

         17  commissions, two of which I believe bear noting. The

         18  first was my part- time service on the Civil Service

         19  Commission, some 25 years ago. I served for about a

         20  year because I was appointed Consumer Affairs

         21  Commissioner, and I could no longer serve on the

         22  body which reviewed the actions of the City's

         23  commissioners. The second Commission was the 1989

         24  Charter Revision Commission, which gave rise to the

         25  form of Municipal Government that, for the most
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          2  part, exists today.

          3                 I trust that this recitation of my

          4  background sheds some light on why I am interested

          5  in rejoining the Civil Service Commission, where I

          6  hope to us my experience once again, "for the public

          7  good."  Thank you,

          8                 Simon P. Gourdine

          9

         10                 Written testimony of:

         11                 Susan Grossman, Interim Commissioner,

         12  NYC Tax Commission

         13                 Good morning ladies and gentleman.

         14  Thank you for the opportunity to meet with you

         15  today. My name is Susan Grossman and in January 2005

         16  you appointed me to an interim one- year position as

         17  commissioner on the NYC Tax Commission. I appear

         18  before you today in connection with my request to be

         19  appointed for the full six- year term. Let me tell

         20  you why I am qualified for this position.

         21                 I am a life- long resident of New

         22  York City. I am a product of the public school

         23  system and I hold degrees from Bronx HS of Science,

         24  City College, Fordham University, and Benjamin

         25  Cardozo School of Law at Yeshiva University. For
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          2  most of my career I worked in the public sector,

          3  first as a teacher of math and science and then,

          4  upon graduating law school, as litigator for the

          5  Internal Revenue Service. Subsequently I served four

          6  years in the Department of Finance as an assistant

          7  commissioner in the audit division and as acting

          8  deputy commissioner in the legal division. I was

          9  then appointed to the New York City tax Appeals

         10  Tribunal where I served a full six- year term. I

         11  then served four years in the State Comptroller's

         12  office as assistant deputy comptroller for New York

         13  City.

         14                 My academic and practical experience

         15  with the application of tax law as well as my

         16  ability to deal with pro- se litigants and

         17  professional representatives serve me well in my

         18  current position. I have experience with the

         19  valuation of real property from my serviced as an

         20  estate tax attorney at the IRS, my supervision of

         21  the real property transfer tax unit at the

         22  Department of Finance, and my review of validation

         23  issues in the business taxes. Also, as a

         24  commissioner at the Tax Tribunal, I authored

         25  decisions involving issues of validation and
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          2  transfer of economic interests in real property tax

          3  transfer cases. While in private practice I advised

          4  clients in real estate tax matters and addresses

          5  valuation issues for sale or tax purposes.

          6                 I believe strongly in public service

          7  and I am confident that my interests and expertise

          8  are best utilized in government. I would be most

          9  grateful for the opportunity to continue to serve

         10  the city as a commissioner on the Tax Commission.

         11                 Thank you for your consideration.

         12

         13                 Written testimony of:

         14                 Marlon E. Brewer

         15                 I, Marlon E. Brewer, have been a

         16  Primary Care Internist at Elmhurst Hospital for the

         17  last 14 years. I am also an Assistant Professor of

         18  Medicine at the Mount Sinai School of Medicine. For

         19  the last nine years I have been the Chief Physician

         20  of the Medical Care Clinic. Our clinic has a staff

         21  of approximately 20 attending physicians, 42

         22  residents- in- training, six nurse practitioners and

         23  sees 55,000 visits a year in an undeserved are of

         24  Queens.

         25                 I believe that I am qualified to be a
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          2  Member of the Board of Health due to my experience

          3  as a physician. I have been involved, through the

          4  Primary Care Development Corporation in successfully

          5  improving the timeliness and access to care in our

          6  Medical Clinic. Since 2003, I have been a leader in

          7  a initiative to improve outcomes in diabetic

          8  patients through a collaborative effort with the

          9  Institute for Health Care Improvement and the Health

         10  and Hospitals Corporation. Additionally, I am a

         11  trainer in our smoking cessation effort and train

         12  the staff how to help patients stop smoking.

         13                 My experience in chronic disease

         14  management, patient flow and access to care and

         15  smoking cessation, in an underserved area of the

         16  City of New York are a plus and consistent with the

         17  mission of the Department of Health and Mental

         18  Hygiene. I am prepared to do my best to protect and

         19  promote the physical and mental health of all

         20  inhabitants in the City of New York.

         21                 Thank you for your consideration.

         22

         23                 Written testimony of:

         24                 Kevin Frawley

         25                 Good morning Speaker Quinn,
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          2  Chairperson Clark and Members of the Rules

          3  Committee. Thank you for the opportunity to present

          4  these brief remarks to this committee.

          5                 I'm honored to be nominated to serve

          6  as a member of the Conflict of Interest Board and,

          7  if appointed with the advice and consent of the City

          8  Council, I look forward to the privilege of joining

          9  the Board as soon as possible and participate in its

         10  very important and sensitive work in the years

         11  ahead.

         12                 I believe that much of my 30 year

         13  career in both public service and the private sector

         14  has qualified and prepared me to serve on this

         15  Board. With your indulgence, I'd like to briefly

         16  review my background and describe my qualifications.

         17                 From 1976 to 1990, I served the City

         18  of New York as an Assistant District Attorney in

         19  Kings County (then in the Koch Administration as

         20  Criminal Justice Coordinator and Commissioner of the

         21  Department of Investigation (DOI).

         22                 While DOI Commissioner, I worked

         23  closely with the then NYC Board of Ethics providing

         24  both investigative support and advise the mayor and

         25  Agency Heads on investigative issues involving
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          2  alleged and actual conflicts of interest. These

          3  included both city employees and private entities

          4  doing business with the City.

          5                 Moreover, DOI conducted

          6  investigations on behalf of the City Council's

          7  Ethics Committee. We prepared reports to the

          8  Committee and met periodically with its Chairman,

          9  Stanley Michaels, to review pending cases.

         10                 In the past 15 years, I served as

         11  Senior Council for Prudential Securities and as

         12  Chief Compliance Officer for Prudential Insurance

         13  Company. I'm currently Executive Vice President of

         14  Crawford & Company, an insurance and financial

         15  services firm, where I'm responsible for Financial

         16  and Administrative Services. My office is located in

         17  New York at Broadway.

         18                 After leaving DOI, my work at

         19  Prudential focused primarily on internal

         20  investigations, compliance and regulatory matters.

         21  Many of these matters involved serious ethical

         22  issues and conflicts of interest. For example, I

         23  formed and then chaired disciplinary review

         24  committees for both the securities and insurance

         25  companies which conducted investigations and made
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          2  recommendations to senior management on violations

          3  of criminal statutes, regulatory requirements and

          4  corporate policies.

          5                 From my public and private

          6  experience, I recognize the importance and sensitive

          7  nature of ethical issues and conflicts of interest.

          8  Cases must be properly investigated and carefully

          9  considered by the Board. The Code of Rules must be

         10  enforced fairly with consistent interpretations

         11  while allowing for exceptions as warranted by the

         12  facts and circumstances in various cases.

         13                 In this context, I believe that a

         14  healthy tension exists between the rights of

         15  individuals and the public interest in the honest,

         16  fair conduct of government affairs.

         17                 On one hand, I understand that

         18  individual reputations are at stake in many of these

         19  matters which can seriously damaged if issued are

         20  not addressed timely, properly and carefully.

         21                 On the other hand, I believe it is

         22  very important for citizens of New York to trust

         23  that their elected and appointed officials are

         24  conducting the public's business with integrity and

         25  without actual or perceived conflicts of interest.
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          2                 Thus, the Board, in fairly and

          3  consistently applying the Conflict of Interest Code

          4  and Rules, performs a valuable service in helping

          5  elected and appointed officials sort through

          6  potential conflicts before the materialize and

          7  holding them accountable for clear cut violations

          8  after the fact. Hopefully, its actions positively

          9  contribute to giving citizens confidence that these

         10  issues are being dealt with appropriately.

         11                 In addition, the Charter's mandate

         12  that the Board provide sound, periodic training to

         13  City officials and employees is crucial to

         14  developing a broad understanding of and commitment

         15  to the Rules and their importance to the conduct of

         16  New York City's government.

         17                 In conclusion, I've lived in Brooklyn

         18  and Manhattan for the past 33 years. I currently

         19  live with my wife Joan and two of my four children

         20  in Manhattan on the Upper West Side. As a citizen

         21  and former City official, I know how important your

         22  work and that of the administration is to the

         23  continued safety and welfare of all New Yorkers. I'm

         24  eager to contribute my time and experience to the

         25  Conflict of Interest Board and ask that you give me
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          2  the chance once again to serve the City of New York.

          3                 I appreciate having had the

          4  opportunity to speak to you today and of course I'm

          5  happy to answer any questions you may have. Thank

          6  you.

          7

          8                 Written testimony of:

          9                 Monica Blum

         10                 Chairperson Reyna, Speaker Quinn and

         11  other distinguished members of the Rules, Privileges

         12  and Elections Committee:

         13                 I am honored to appear before you

         14  today for your consideration for possible

         15  reappointment to the Conflicts of Interest Board.

         16  Slightly over two years ago, this distinguished body

         17  approved my appointment to the Conflicts of Interest

         18  Board and I have found my service on this Board over

         19  the past two years to be extremely rewarding.

         20                 I have spent my entire professional

         21  career in some form of public service and believe

         22  that public employment is a privilege not a right.

         23  The past two years on the Conflicts of Interest

         24  Board have been interesting, challenging, and

         25  gratifying. I would hope that my extensive
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          2  background in, and familiarity with City government,

          3  has been helpful to the Board and staff and a

          4  benefit to the City. I have always had a strong

          5  interest in the integrity of city employees, public

          6  officials and those who do business with the City,

          7  and the Conflicts of Interest Board has enabled me

          8  to utilize my background in an appropriate way. I

          9  would like to be able to continue to serve the City.

         10                 Thank you for your consideration of

         11  my candidacy and I am available to answer any

         12  questions you may have.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 1:18 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, JOAN GARCIA, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 13th day of September 2006.
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          JOAN GARCIA
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          9            I, JOAN GARCIA, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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